
  

 

Students 

  
 Integrity 

 

Fiscal Responsibility 

 

Learning 

   

  People  

                

Teamwork 

 

Commitment 

   

Accountability 

 

            High Standards 

 

 
 
 

Four Corners  
Charter School 

 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

July 15, 2010 
 

 
 

6245 North Federal Highway, 5th ● Floor Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308 
www.charterschoolsusa.com 

 

Page 1 of 97



 

 A
ge

n
d

a 

                     FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. BOARD MEETING 
          Thursday, July 15, 2010 

             Agenda 
    
 
 
    CALL TO ORDER 
                                                                               ACTION ITEMS 
 

I. Open For Public Comment        

II. Minutes from May 20, 2010 Meeting             (APPROVAL)  

III. Memorandum of Understanding-Technology Inventory       (APPROVAL) 

IV. Transportation Agreement- Osceola Cty        (APPROVAL) 

V. Transportation Agreement- Lake Cty         (APPROVAL) 

VI. Engagement Letter for Audit          (APPROVAL) 

                                                                               INFORMATIONAL 

VII. School Report  

VIII. FCAT Results 

IX. Parent Survey Results 

X. Student Survey Results 

XI. Staff Survey Results          

XII. Facilities Update         

XIII. Management Renewal                       

XIV. Board Member Terms - Update                    

XV. Old Business   

XVI. New Business  
 

XVII. Adjournment 
 
 
 

◄ Next Meeting:  To Be Determined  ►  

Page 2 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Minutes  
 
Review the minutes from the previous board meeting for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and approve the Four Corners Charter School, Inc. Governing Board 
Minutes.   
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Mary Vecchione
 

Page 3 of 97



MEETING MINUTES 
 
Name of Foundation: Four Corners Charter School, Inc. 
Board Meeting:  May 20, 2010 
 
School(s):   Four Corners Charter School 
  
The minutes of Sunshine Law meetings need not be verbatim transcripts of the meeting. These 
minutes are a brief summary of the events of the meeting. 
 
Date: Start End Next Meeting: Next time: Prepared by: 

05.20.10 2:00 p.m. 4:00 p.m. 07.15.10 2:00 p.m. M.Vecchione 

Meeting Location: 

 
School District of Osceola County, 817 Bill Beck Blvd, Kissimmee, Florida 

 

Attended by: 

Mr. John McKay, Chairman 
Ms. Cindy Barrow, Director 
Mr. Larry Metz, Director 
Mr. David Stone, Director 
 
Absent: 
Mr. Jay Wheeler 

Ms. Debbie Von Behren, COO, CSUSA 
Mr. Mike Essik, Dir of Finance, CSUSA 
Ms. Denise Thompson, Principal, FCCS 
Mr. Paul Hage, Dir of Facilities, CSUSA 
Mr. Dan Cappola, Facilities, FCCS 
Mr. Brian Przybyla, IT Support, CSUSA 
Ms. Mary Vecchione, Governing Board Liaison, CSUSA 
Ms. Migdalia Mercado, Finance, Osceola School District 
Mr. Gary Sersheimer, Finance, Osceola School District 
Ms. Suzanne D’Agresta, Attorney, Osceola School District 
Dr. Sonia Esposito, Dir of Charter Schools, Osceola School Dist 
 

Highlights: 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Pursuant to public notice, the meeting commenced at 2:05 p.m. with a Call to Order by 
Chairman McKay.  Roll call was taken and quorum was established. 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman McKay asked the Board to review the minutes from the January 28, 2010 Governing 
Board meeting and note any corrections or comments.  The minutes stand.   
 
Motion made by Mr. Metz with a second by Ms. Barrow to approve the Four Corners 
Charter School, Inc. Governing Board minutes from the January 28, 2010 meeting.  The 
motion was approved 3-0 (Mr. Stone arrived late; 1 absent). 
 
II. FCCS, INC. AMENDED BUDGET 

• Ms. Mercado reviewed the amended budget for FCCS, Inc.  General Fund 
balance was amended due to additional revenues after the increase in February 
FTE revenue which also increased expenses.   

• Capital Outlay budget was amended due to decrease and transfer out of 
general funds.   

• Ms. Barrow asked about the loss in state revenue.  Ms. Mercado indicated that 
they were not expecting this but this amount fluctuates year to year.  

 

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.  Charter Schools USA 

Page 4 of 97



Meeting Minutes cont’d 
May 20, 2010 

Page 2  
 

Motion made by Mr. Metz with a second by Ms. Barrow to approve the amended Budget for 
FY10 for Four Corners Charter School, Inc.  The motion was approved 3-0 (1 late; 1 
absent).  
 
III. FCCS, INC. 3RD QUARTER FINANCIALS 

• Ms. Mercado reported on 3rd quarter financials for FCCS, Inc.  FCCS, Inc. ended 
the third quarter with $76,000 in receivables and $1M in payables.  The 
payables consist of the corporation’s management fees and debt service 
obligations.   

• The capital projects fund ended the third quarter with a fund balance of 
$409,873.   

• FCCS, Inc. received $4.5 million in general State revenues by the end of the 
third quarter.   

• Expenditures in the general fund exceeded revenues at the end of the third 
quarter causing a negative change in fund balance.  Once the transfer of the 
charter school capital outlay is recorded, the positive net change in fund 
balance will materialize as planned.   

 
Motion made by Ms. Barrow with a second by Mr. Metz to approve the FCCS, Inc. 3rd 
Quarter Financials for the School year 2009-2010.  The motion was approved 3-0 (1 late; 
1 absent).   
 
IV. FCCS 3rd Quarter Financials 

• Mr. Essik reviewed the financials for FCCS.  Highlights of revenue include 
enrollment, which is favorable to budget by 5.5 students.  Capital Outlay is 
forecasted at ($8,000) due to payment summary by the Florida DOE.  Total 
Revenue for 3rd quarter is favorable at $119,000 with a favorable forecast for 
year end of $177,000. 

• Highlights reviewed in Expenses include compensation, primarily due to group 
health insurance participation; professional services unfavorable due to District 
fees and Management fees calculated on higher FTE revenue; transportation 
costs are above plan; building maintenance & repairs are unfavorable due to 
electricity trending higher than budgeted; and capital expense is favorable 
through Q3 due to timing of expenses vs. plan.   

• Mr. Essik broke down “other operating” expenses.  The variances were due 
primarily to:  telephone & internet, electricity, and building repairs and 
maintenance.   

• In addition, Mr. Essik showed the variances in Building R&M Budget.  These 
were due primarily to the HVAC system.   

• Total net change plus reserve for Q3 is $285,000 with a forecast of $384,000. 
 
Motion made by Mr. Metz with a second by Mr. Stone to approve the 3rd Quarter financials 
for Four Corners Charter School.  The motion was approved 4-0 (1 absent).  
 
V. FCCS PRELIMINARY BUDGET FY11 

• Mr. Essik reviewed the preliminary FY11 Budget for Four Corners Charter 
School.  The budget was built assuming enrollment of 982 students per 
District’s projections.  Actual enrollment is 1002.  FY11 FTE revenue is 
calculated at an average per student rate of $6,131, which is a decrease of 
approximately .46% from the current FY10 average rate of $6,159.  The 

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.  Charter Schools USA 

Page 5 of 97



Meeting Minutes cont’d 
May 20, 2010 

Page 3  
 

projected amount corresponds to the Four Corners Holdback Schedule provided 
by the District. 

• Capital Outlay funds are budgeted at approximately $506 per student as 
provided in the Holdback Schedule. 

• Compensation and benefits are projected to remain consistent with FY10, along 
with staffing numbers.  Tutoring funds were increased to add an extra day of 
tutoring per week prior to FCAT testing.   

• The management fee calculation was discussed, which is 12% of net FTE 
revenue.   

• Expenses are generally consistent with the current year with the exception of 
instructional expenses.  These will increase due to the adoption of a new Math 
program that will be consistent with the change made to the Next Generation 
Sunshine State Standards.   

• Building maintenance expenses were reviewed.  They are projected to 
decrease by $5K due to savings in custodial costs.   

• Profit of the Before and Aftercare program is budgeted to remain consistent 
with the current year’s forecast.   

• Capital expenses were budgeted in the amount of $273,541 which includes a 
technology enhancement plan of $237,160 along with standard capital needs of 
$36,381. 

• Overall School budget shows a deficit of ($183,672).  The request presented to 
the Board is for the approval to use the FCCS fund balance to allow for the 
purchase of the technology enhancement plan.  The budget as presented 
without the technology enhancement reflects a surplus for the year in the 
amount of $53,488. 

• The Board asked that we move to the Technology Plan agenda item before 
approving the FY11 Budget.     

 
VI. TECHNOLOGY PLAN 

• Mr. Przybyla presented the technology enhancement plan for FCCS.  The goal is 
to outfit the School to be competitive with other schools in the District and to 
provide the best possible environment for learning.   

• Mr. Przybyla compared 3 companies, Dell, HP, and Acer.  He based the 
comparisons on worldwide market share, desktop reliability, and laptop 
reliability.  He then reviewed the needs as to what exactly would be purchased 
and their costs.   

• He laid out the process with two options:  a 2 year implementation plan and a 3 
year implementation plan.  He provided detailed analysis on each and the cost 
per year for each option.  The Board was all in agreement for the 2 year plan.   

• The Board asked questions on minimum resolution requirements and what is 
needed for certain programs required.  Also, the Board questioned the service 
provider.  Mr. Przybyla explained that the School would access service through 
Paytech, a company which provides the ability to stretch to various vendors in 
different locations.   

• The Board was concerned on who should be responsible for the teacher’s 
laptops.  Should it be the Board or CSUSA?  The teachers are employees of 
CSUSA.  Ms. Von Behren explained that they are part of the inventory of the 
School and when a teacher left, the laptop stayed at the School for their 
replacement.  Chairman McKay was concerned over the lack of control by the 
Board for inventory of those technology items.  He suggested that CSUSA create 

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.  Charter Schools USA 

Page 6 of 97



Meeting Minutes cont’d 
May 20, 2010 

Page 4  
 

a Memorandum of Understanding which states that CSUSA will provide an 
annual report on inventory to the Board.  The management fee would be held if 
there was non compliance with CSUSA on this.  The Board was in agreement.    

• In addition, the Board agreed that their decision today should not impact the 
School and they would move forward with the technology plan implementation 
and budget with the agreement that CSUSA would provide a Memorandum of 
Understanding and annual inventory of technology equipment.  The MOU should 
outline the processes for inventory and who should be responsible  

 
Motion made by Mr. Metz with a second by Mr. Stone to approve the FCCS preliminary 
budget for FY11as presented in the board book with the following conditions: 

At the next regular FCCS, Inc. Governing Board meeting a Memorandum of 
Understanding is brought forth by CSUSA to outline the following understandings on 
positions taken on the technology plan for the approval of the budget today.  

1. An inventory system be established and agreement presented which allows 
the Board to account for property being purchased under the technology 
plan being approved, including a mechanism for accountability of property 
and CSUSA’s responsibility on lost, damaged and missing equipment being 
purchased with Board dollars.   

2. The Board recognizes that they will be reviewing the Management 
Agreement next year and denote that the renewal would include who is 
responsible for the technology equipment purchased and establish a policy 
plan. 

3. The Board’s decision this year is without prejudice on any negotiations on 
the renewal of the Management Agreement. 

Lastly, the Memorandum of Understanding will be brought forward at the next meeting of 
the Board for approval.  The motion was approved 4-0 (1 absent). 
 
VII. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR POLK COUNTY BUS 

• The MOU between Polk County School Board Transportation and Choice Offices 
and the Four Corners Charter School was reviewed.   

• Briefly, this document outlines the transport of Polk County students to Four 
Corners Charter School. 

 
Motion made by Mr. Stone with a second by Ms. Barrow to approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding Between Polk County School Board Transportation and Choice Offices and 
Four Corners Charter School.  The motion was approved 4-0 (1 absent). 
 
IX. SUBLEASE TERM 

• This document provides for the extension of the Sublease term to be 
coextensive with the term of the Charter Contract.  The Board members were 
all in agreement.   

 
Motion made by Mr. Stone with a second by Ms. Barrow to extend the Sublease Agreement 
to be coextensive with the term of the Charter Contract.  The motion was approved 4-0 
(1 absent). 
 
X. CHARTER RENEWAL 

• The Board agreed that no discussion was necessary for the Charter Renewal.  
Only Board signature was required.   

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.  Charter Schools USA 

Page 7 of 97



Meeting Minutes cont’d 
May 20, 2010 

Page 5  
 

 
 
XI. SACS ACCREDITATION 

• Ms. Von Behren presented SACS Accreditation to the Board asking for their 
support that CSUSA seek network accreditation for all their schools.   

• It was noted that FCCS is already SACS Accredited and this would not affect 
them in any way.   

• The Board was in support. 
 
Motion made by Ms. Barrow with a second by Mr. Stone to support CSUSA in pursuing SACS 
Accreditation as a network of Schools.  The motion was approved 4-0 (1 absent).   
 
XII. SCHOOL REPORT 

• Ms. Thompson reported on enrollment of 967 students.  She also indicated how 
many students attended from each County.  Seven staffing positions needed to 
be filled. 

• Ms. Thompson spoke on the topics for professional development which 
included:  Bloom’s Taxonomy and Professional Learning Communities.   

• She also reported on numerous School, PTO, and Community activities.   
• Enrollment for the next School year includes 835 students who recommitted 

and 78 new enrollees.   
• As the topic of enrollment ended, the Board brought back the subject of Polk 

County being represented on the Board.  Mr. Stone had strong feelings on this 
subject and spoke to the Board.  Overall, it was agreed that Polk County had 
been invited at the onset of opening the School to participate and contribute 
financially in the School.  Polk County declined and therefore lost their right to 
have a seat on the Board.  It was recommended that the Board remain as it is.  
The Board did note that Polk County is invited to attend the meetings and have 
an input during the Open Forum portion of the meeting.   

• Ms. Thompson reviewed the Benchmark Testing Results. 
 
XIII. NOTICE OF CLAIM  

• Ms. Von Behren reported that a student had been injured at school.  When the 
insurance claim had been filed, it was inadvertently sent to the wrong carrier.  
This has been corrected and they are currently investigating the claim.   

 
XIV. FACILITY UPDATE 

• Mr. Hage reported on the follow up to the District’s Annual Comprehensive 
Safety Inspection.  All the deficiencies have been corrected and or rectified 
with the exception of the hand rail installation and rock climbing parts for the 
playground equipment.   

• The Hand Rail Quotes are $4,864 or $6,016.  The Board felt there is a wide 
discrepancy on prices.  CSUSA will check with a safety inspector to see what 
code is and bring back to the Board an update.   

• The rock climbing parts are on back order.   
• The Board asked about the quotes for the A/C unit and Roof.  Mr. Hage 

indicated that these would be completed for the next meeting.  It was 
recommended that he check with D B Young, a consulting firm, to get a 
recommendation on which direction to take.   

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.  Charter Schools USA 

Page 8 of 97



Meeting Minutes cont’d 
May 20, 2010 

Page 6  
 

• The Board asked that Mr. Hage bring to the next meeting designs on the 
Athletic Fields and what, if any, possible changes to the School would include, 
i.e., traffic flow, operations, etc.   

 
XV. PARENT SURVEY RESULTS 

• Ms. Thompson reviewed the mid year parent survey results.  Overall the results 
were very good.  Participation increased from 16.91% the prior year to 24.09%.  
In addition, those questions receiving the highest marks were highlighted and in 
addition, opportunities were noted. 

 
XV. STAFF SURVEY RESULTS 

• Ms. Thompson reviewed the mid year staff survey results.  Overall the results 
were very good.  Those questions receiving the highest marks were highlighted 
and in addition, opportunities were noted. 

 
XVI. NEW BUSINESS 

• Chairman McKay noted that on the FCCS website, the uniform policy read for 
“students to purchase their uniforms only from Ibley Uniform Company”.  He 
did not like the word “only” and felt it was unsubstantiated.  The policy in 
Osceola County was that there should not be a single source to purchase 
uniforms from and wanted the word “only” removed from the site.  Ms. Von 
Behren indicated that she would authorize to have that word removed.   

 
Motion made to adjourn the Four Corners Charter School, Inc. Governing Board meeting.  
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
The next meeting will be July 15, 2010 at 2:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
John McKay, Chairman 

 
Date:  __________________ 

 
 
 

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.  Charter Schools USA 

Page 9 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding for Technology Equipment 
 
Review the document, Memorandum of Understanding between FCCS, Inc. and 
CSUSA for understanding the inventory control of the technology equipment 
purchased FY11. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and approve the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Richard Page
 

Page 10 of 97



Memo of Understanding 
Between 

Four Corners Charter School, Inc. 
And 

Charter Schools USA 
 
 
 
Charter Schools USA (“CSUSA”) acting on behalf of Four Corners Charter School, Inc. 
(the “School”) will purchase technology as outlined in the budget for fiscal year 2011.   
Subsequent to this purchase the technology will be maintained by CSUSA in accordance 
with policies and procedures and additionally provide the Board with an annual inventory 
report to include: 
 

1. CSUSA will establish and maintain an asset inventory listing for technology 
purchases which will include the following detail: 

 
• Item description 
• Item serial number 
• Date of purchase 
• Original purchase price 
• Expected useful life  
• Location and person responsible for item 
• Date item put into service 
• Status of item (i.e., in use, decommissioned, etc.) 

 
Inventory will be taken each year by staff of CSUSA.  Teachers are responsible 
for the inventory of their classrooms and taking inventory is part of their check 
in/out procedures each year.   

 
2. CSUSA’s Accounting Department will also maintain the technology purchased on 

the general ledger of the school as well as in their Fixed Assets software program.  
This information will coincide with the inventory listing for ease of tracking any 
additions and deletions.   

 
3. CSUSA’s policy on lost, damaged or missing equipment is as follows: 

 
• In the event of a suspected stolen item, we contact the Osceola County 

Sherriff’s Department and have them conduct an investigation and file a 
report of the theft. 

 
4. CSUSA’s policy on distribution of technology equipment and communication 

systems are as follows: 
 

• Employee’s who receive technology equipment are provided a policy 
outlining proper use and are accountable to care for equipment. 

Page 11 of 97



• CSUSA’s technology & internet policies are communicated to every 
employee at time of hire as part of the employee handbook.  Employees 
are required to sign acknowledgement of this policy.   

 
 
 
 
Four Corners Charter School, Inc. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________            ________________ 
Chairman                                                                                                                                            Date 
 
 
 
 
Charter Schools USA 
 
 
 
______________________________________________            _________________ 
Charter Schools USA                                                                                                                         Date 

Page 12 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Transportation Agreement 
 
Review the transportation agreement between FCCS and The School District of 
Osceola County. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and approve the Transportation Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Migdalia Mercado
 

Page 13 of 97



Page 14 of 97



Page 15 of 97



Page 16 of 97



Page 17 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Transportation Agreement 
 
Review the transportation agreement between FCCS and The School District of 
Lake County. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and approve the Transportation Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Sonia Esposito
 

Page 18 of 97



Page 19 of 97



Page 20 of 97



Page 21 of 97



Page 22 of 97



Page 23 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Engagement Letter  
 
Review the engagement letter for the audit for Four Corners Charter School, Inc. 
for year ending June 30, 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and approve the Four Corners Charter School, Inc. Engagement Letter 
for year ending June 30, 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by: Migdalia Mercado
 

Page 24 of 97



BERMAN ((j HOPKINS 
WRIGHT,t~:r'\LAHAM 
-~.~,~-~~~-~~~-~-~~-~~":--~:;...~~.._~._~~~-,.~~~-_._-------.~ 

CPAS AND ASSOCIATES. LLP 

480 N. Orlando Ave. • Suite 2/8 
www.bermanhopkins.com Winter Park, FL 32789 

8035 Spyglass Hill Rd. 
Melbourne. FL 32940 
Phone: 32 J -757-2020 Phone: 407-644-58/1 

Fax: 407-644-6022Fax: 32 1-242-4844 

April 21, 2010 

Board of Directors 
Four Corners Charter School, Inc. 
817 Bill Beck Blvd. Building 2000 
Kissimmee, FL 34744-4495 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Four Corners 
Charter School, Inc. (the "Charterholder") for the year ended June 30, 2010. We will audit the 
financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Four 
Corners Charter School (the "School") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010. Accounting 
standards generally accepted in the United States provide for certain required supplementary 
information (RSI), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to accompany the 
School's basic financial statements. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited 
procedures to the School's RSI. These limited procedures will consist principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation, which management is 
responsible for affirming to us in its representation letter. Unless we encounter problems with 
the presentation of the RSI or with procedures relating to it, we will disclaim an opinion on it. 
The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected 
to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 

1)	 Management's Discussion and Analysis. 

2)	 Schedules of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
General Fund and All Major Special Revenue Funds 

Supplementary information other than RSI also accompanies the School's basic financial 
statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures 
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and will provide an opinion on it in relation 
to the basic financial statements: 

1)	 Schedule of expenditures of federal awards, if applicable. 

The following additional information accompanying the basic financial statements will not be 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and for 
which our auditor's report will disclaim an opinion. 

1) Schedules of Functional Expenditures - All Major Funds
 
2) Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Categorical Funds
 

Page 25 of 97



Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your basic financial 
statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of the additional information 
referred to in the first paragraph when considered in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The objective also includes reporting on

•	 Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with laws, regulations, 
and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards. 

•	 Internal control related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on 
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements 
that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with 
the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMS Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 

The reports on internal control and compliance will each include a statement that the report is 
intended solely for the information and use of management, the body or individuals charged with 
governance, others within the entity speci'fic legislative or regulatory bodies, federal awarding 
agencies, and if applicable, pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit Act 
Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of OMS Circular A-133, and will include tests of 
accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with OMS Circular A
133, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions and to 
render the required reports. If our opinions on the financial statements or the Single Audit 
compliance opinions are other than unqualified, we will fully discuss the reasons with you in 
advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have 
not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this 
engagement. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for the basic financial statements and all accompanying information 
as well as all representations contained therein. Management is also responsible for preparation 
of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the requirements of OMS 
Circular A-133. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements, 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes. You are responsible for making 
all management decisions and performing all management functions relating to the financial 
statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and for accepting full 
responsibility for such decisions. You will be required to acknowledge in the management 
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and that you have reviewed and approved the 
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their 
issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you are required to designate an 
individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee any nonaudit services we 

Page 26 of 97



provide and for evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting 
responsibility for them. 

In addition to drafting the financial statements, we will compile your Program Cost Reports in the 
format prescribed by the local school district. You will be required to review and approve the 
results of the services prior to their issuance and have a responsibility to be in a position of fact 
and appearance to make an informed judgment on the results. Further, you are required to 
designate a qualified management-level individual to be responsible and accountable for 
overseeing our services. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including 
internal controls over compliance, and for monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that 
appropriate goals and objectives are met. You are also responsible for the selection and 
application of accounting principles; for the fair presentation in the financial statements of the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the School and the respective changes in financial position in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and for compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information 
available to us and for ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and 
properly recorded. Your responsibilities also include, including identifying significant vendor 
relationships in which the vendor has responsibility for program compliance and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information. Your responsibilities include adjusting the 
financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the representation 
letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current 
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and 
in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and 
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud or illegal acts affecting the 
government involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal 
control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any 
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications 
from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are 
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants. Additionally, as required by OMS Circular A-133, it is 
management's responsibility to follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings 
and to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan. The 
summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review in June. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of 
audit findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us 
previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related 
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility 
includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and 
recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or 
studies. You are also responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, 
and for the timing and format for providing that information. 

Page 27 of 97



Audit Procedures-General 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of 
transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. We will plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) 
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are 
attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity. 
Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not 
expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance and because 
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material 
misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us. In addition, an audit is 
not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or major 
programs. However, we will inform you of any material errors and any fraudulent financial 
reporting or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform you of 
any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly 
inconsequential. We will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our 
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to 
any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded 
in the accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct 
confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with 
selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written 
representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for 
responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written 
representations from you about the financial statements and related matters. 

Audit Procedures-Internal Controls 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including 
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of 
controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant 
to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to 
preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance 
matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, 
will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, 
accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to 
Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by OMB Circular A-133, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to 
preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to 
each major federal award program. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be 
necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed 
in our report on internal control issued pursuant to OMB Circular A-133. 

Page 28 of 97



An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant 
deficiencies. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those 
charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated 
under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and OMS Circular A-133. 

Audit Procedures-Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we will perform tests of the School's compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations and the provisions of contracts and agreements, including grant agreements. 
However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on overall 
compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued 
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

OMS Circular A-133 requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the auditee has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the 
provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major programs. Our procedures will 
consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures described in the OMB Circular 
A-133 Compliance Supplement for the types of com pliance req uirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the School's major programs. The purpose of these 
procedures will be to express an opinion on the School's compliance with requirements 
applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to OMS 
Circular A-133. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service 
providers in serving your account. We may share confidential information about you with these 
service providers, but remain committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your 
information. Accordingly, we maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect 
the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure confidentiality 
agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we 
will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to 
prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we 
are unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your 
consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party service provider. 
Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service 
providers. 

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other 
confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. 

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data 
Collection Form that summarizes our audit findings. It is management's responsibility to submit 
the reporting package (including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditors' reports, and corrective action plan) 
along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. We will coordinate with 
you the electronic submission and certification. If applicable, we will provide copies of our report 
for you to include with the reporting package you will submit to pass-through entities. The Data 
Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after 
receipt of the auditors' reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless a longer 
period is agreed to in advance by the cognizant or oversight agency for audits. 

Page 29 of 97



The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Berman, Hopkins, Wright & 
LaHam, CPAs and Associates, LLP and constitutes confidential information. However, pursuant 
to authority given by law or regulation, we may be requested to make certain audit 
documentation available to the School's sponsor or its designee, a federal agency providing 
direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality 
review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will 
notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be 
provided under the supervision of Berman, Hopkins, Wright & LaHam, CPAs and Associates, 
LLP personnel. Furthermore, upon request; we may provide copies of selected audit 
documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute 
the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after 
the report release or for any additional period requested by the federal, state and local agencies. 
If we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an 
audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to 
destroying the audit documentation. 

We expect to begin our audit on approximately May 15, 2010 and to issue our reports no later 
than September 20, 2010. Ross A. Whitley, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible 
for supervising the engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign 
them. We estimate our fee for this service will be as listed in Attachment A. Our standard hourly 
rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the 
personnel assigned to your audit. 

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on 
presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account 
becomes 90 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If 
we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have 
been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our 
report(s). You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for 
all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The fee is based on anticipated 
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be 
encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with 
you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent 
external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports 
and letters of comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2009 peer review report 
accompanies this letter. 

With the mutual consent from Berman, Hopkins, Wright and Laham, CPAs & Associates, LLP, 
the Charterholder has the option of renewing this agreement for years after June 30, 2010, at 
the terms stated above. 

Page 30 of 97



We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Four Corners Charter School and believe 
this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any 
questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in 
this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. 

Respectfully, 

~W~
 
Berman, Hopkins, Wright & LaHam CPA's and Associates, LLP 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Four Corners Charter School, Inc. for the 
year ended June 30, 2010. 

Officer Signature: _ 

Title: _ 

Date: _ 

Page 31 of 97



Attachment A 

Auditing 

Compiled 
(Unaudited) 

Program Cost 
Report 

$11,250 $500 

(If the school requires a single audit the additional fee will be $1,500) 

Page 32 of 97



Reznick Group, PC.Reznick 7700 Old Georgetown Road 

Suite 400 

ACCO\JNTlNG -TAX ~ BUSINESS ADVISORY Bethesda. MD 20814-6224 
Group 

Tel: (301) 652-9100 

SYSTEM REVIEW REPORT 

November 11, 2009 

To the Partners of 
Berman Hopkins Wright and LaHam, CPA's, LLP 
and the National Peer Review Committee of the AICPA 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of 
Berman Hopkins Wright and LaHam, CPA's, LLP (the firm) applicable to non-SEC issuers in 
effect for the year ended June 30, 2009. Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the 
Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board 
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The firm is responsible for designing a 
system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of 
performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material 
respects. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality 
control and the firm's compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives, scope, 
limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review are described in the standards 
at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. 

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements performed 
under Government Audit standards and audits of employee benefit plans. 

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Berman 
Hopkins Wright and LaHam, CPA's, LLP applicable to non-SEC issuers in effect for the year 
ended June 30, 2009, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with 
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional 
standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating ofpass, pass with deficiency(ies) or 
fail. Berman Hopkins Wright and LaHam, CPA's, LLP has received a peer review rating ofpass. 

..... ~~. 
.. - ," ... . , . 

~r,' .C. 
Bethesda, Maryland 

www.reznickgroup.com 

Page 33 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  School Report 
 
Discussion and review on the summary of the School Report for the month of 
May/June 2010.  The report will summarize the highlights from Enrollment; 
Reasons for Withdrawal; Staffing Updates; School Updates; Facility Updates; 
School & Community Activities; and Technology.  Detailed information can be 
found within the summary attached.   
 
FCAT Results 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Discussion and review for purposes of evaluating the progress of the school and 
to generate goals and ideas.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Discussion  
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Denise Thompson
 

Page 34 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
MS. DENISE THOMPSON 

The Board of Directors’ School Report 
 

Date:  July 15, 2010 
 
 

I. Enrollment (May/June) 
  Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May  Jun 

Total 
Enrollment-
Elementary/MS 966 972 991  986 982 990 977 967 965 963 
Total 
Enrollment-
orange      12 12 12 12 12 12 
Enrollment – 
Osceola Cty      160 162 154 152 149 148 
Enrollment – 
Lake County      245 248 248 247 249 249 
Enrollment – 
Polk County      555 568 563 556 555 554 

Budgeted 
Enrollment 986 986 986  986 986 986 986 986 986 986 
% in 
Attendance 93 95 97  94 92.74% 93.06% 96.81% 100% 92% 92% 

# of Student 
Withdrawals 91 15 7  10 13 23 13 10 4 2 
# of 
Suspensions      3 3 6 7 10 5 

 
 

II. Reasons For Withdrawal: 
 Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

Moving Out of Area      12 22 13 10 4 2 

Curriculum            

Sport/ExtraCurricular            

Transportation/Busing            

Uniforms            

Not Satisf  w Teacher            

Not Satisf  w Adminis            

Volunteer Hours            

Discipline      1      

Other:  Please indicate 
why: 
1.Wanted to be 
w/friends 
2. 
3. 

      1     or
t 

p
 Sc

h
oo

l R
e

 
 

III. Staffing Update 
  Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May  Jun 

# of New Staff  12 0 1  1 1 0 0 0  11 
Grade & Subject Area of Open Positions: Fully Staffed 
Reasons for Leaving:  

School Report  
Page 1 of 3 

Page 35 of 97



 

Additions Since Last Report: 11 
Leadership Training/Leading Edge Update: 

Participation:
Names: 

Position: 

Kenneth Toppin, Karima Ezzair, Joe Childers, Darlene 
Wykert,  and Jennifer Reagan 
Dean, Reading Teacher, Reading/Math Resource 
Teacher, Admin Asst., Language Arts Teacher 

Other:  
 
IV. School Update 

School Site Visit: Next Date: TBA 
Monthly Updates on School Improvement Plan/Strategic 
Plan 

Date & Agenda of Last SAC Mtg: 
 Professional Dev Topics for the Month: 

 
 

  
May 17th 
 Election of New officers 
 

Other:  
Other:  
 

V. Facility Update  
Cleaning: Continuous Cleaning of Facilities 
Maintenance: Pressure Cleaning, Classroom & Hallway Painting, floors 
Building: Removal of flammable/corrosive labels from cabinets. 

Repainting of cabinets.  Hand Rail Still Pending 
Outdoor Areas: Added more mulch to have 6 inches, replaced swings, 

rock climbing wall 
Other:  
 
VI. School/PTO/Community Activities (Highlight any school and/or community activities held that would 

significantly impact the board) 
   
  
  
  
  
  
 
VII. Technology  

or
t Technology Improvements(new equip; new software; SIS, 

etc): 
 

Technology Concerns: Upgrades 
Other:  p  

 Sc
h

oo
l R

e VIII. Reports Specific To This Month (This will vary month to month) 
:  
Student Enrollment:      
 960 

Recommits: 821 
New Enrollment:  139 
Wait List: 198   Offered Slots: 39  

  
Other: Continuing Enrollment process.  

 
 

School Report  
Page 2 of 3 

Page 36 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  FCAT Results 
 
Review the FCAT Scores 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and discuss the Four Corners Charter School, Inc. Governing Board  
FCAT Scores.   
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Denise Thompson
 

Page 37 of 97



Copyright 2008 Charter Schools USA

Putting
Students

First

Four Corners Charter School
2009-2010 FCAT Raw Results 

Reading-Mathematics-Writing-Science 

July 15, 2010



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Reading Raw: 
3rd Grade Proficient

• 73% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Reading Raw: 
3rd Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Reading Raw: 
3rd Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Mathematics 
Raw: 3rd Grade Proficient

• 83% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Mathematics Raw: 
3rd Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Mathematics Raw: 
3rd Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
4th Grade Proficient

• 72 % of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
4th Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
4th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
4th Grade Proficient

• 78% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
4th Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
4th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Writing:
4th Grade Proficient Comparison

•96% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher) AYP

• 78.5% of students are proficient (Average of 3.5 higher) Fl School Grade



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
5th Grade Proficient

• 71% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
5th Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
5th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
5th Grade Proficient

• 61% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
5th Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
5th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Science:
5th Grade Proficient Comparison

• 52% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
6th Grade Proficient

• 74% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
6th Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
6th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
6th Grade Proficient

• 57% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
6th Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
6th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
7th Grade Proficient

• 79% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
7th Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
7th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw 
Mathematics:

7th Grade Proficient

• 63% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
7th Grade Comparison (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
7th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
8th Grade Proficient

• 58% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 8th

Comparison Grade (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 
8th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw 
Mathematics: 8th Grade Proficient

• 66% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
8th Comparison Grade (Proficient)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 
8th Grade Comparison (Level 1)



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Writing:
8th Grade Proficient Comparison

• 100% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher) AYP

• 92% of students are proficient (Average of 3.5 higher) Fl School Grade



Putting Students First

2009-2010 FCAT Raw Science:
8th Grade Proficient Comparison

• 34% of students are proficient (Level 3 or higher)
• No data  indicates, no students scored within that level



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Parent Survey Results 
 
Review the end of year Parent Survey Results 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and discuss the Four Corners Charter School, Inc. Governing Board  
Parent Survey Results   
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Denise Thompson
 

Page 45 of 97



Parent Survey Results
End of Year 2010

Presented to 

The Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

presented  July, 2010

Page 46 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

Survey Summary

• Graphs will provide a pictorial view of the survey 
results.

• Results from individual “Buckets” are evaluated to 
show successes and opportunities.  

• Results will be integrated into the School’s strategic 
plan for the remainder of the school year.

Page 47 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

Average Results of “Buckets”
4 point Likert scale

“Buckets” June ‘10 June ’09 Nov ‘09

Curriculum 3.16          3.06 3.22

Goals & Feedback 3.18 3.08 3.30

Parent & Community Involvement 3.16 2.95 3.32

Safe & Orderly Environment 3.29 3.21 3.39

Collegiality & Professionalism 3.23 3.18 3.36

Student Motivation 3.27 3.16 3.28

SIS/Technology 3.20 3.19

Food Service 2.95 2.88 2.99

Transportation 3.17 1.24 3.17

Uniforms 2.47 2.36 2.45

Customer Service                                          3.28 3.20 3.32

General 3.41 3.30 3.45

Average for all 3.18 2.90 3.21

Page 48 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

School Results by Categories
FCCS Category Compared with CSUSA Totals

3.16

3.18

3.16

3.29

3.23

3.27

3.2

2.95

3.17

2.47

3.28

3.41

3.18

3.25

3.29

3.41

3.46

3.36

3.37

3.28

2.9

3.23

2.84

3.41

3.45

3.29

0 0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5 4

Curriculum

Goals & Feedback

Parent & Community Involvement

Safe & Orderly Environment

Collegiality & Professionalism

Student Motivation

SIS/Technology

Food Service

Transportation

Uniforms

Customer Service

Loyalty/General

School Total

Ca
te

go
ry

4 pt Likert Scale

CSUSA
FCCS

Page 49 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

Strengths

• The school buildings and grounds are clean 
and well maintained. 3.42

• Student have adjusted socially to the 
school’s environment. 3.33

• Students feel safe at our Charter School.

3.30

Page 50 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

Opportunities

• Parents are informed of school events and 
activities. 3.03

• Extra assistance with school work is 
available to our students. 3.05

• I receive regular feedback on my child’s 
progress. 3.03

Page 51 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

Satisfaction Results

My child is happy at our Charter School.

3.41

I would recommend our Charter School to a friend.

3.42

I intend to re-enroll my child for the next academic 
year.

3.40

Page 52 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

Four Corners Charter School
Participation

Total student/parent population were 
given the opportunity to complete the 
parent survey.

Survey was distributed by email and 
paper form (upon request).  

FCCS

Participation Rates:   June ’09 – 16.91%

Nov ’09 – 24.09%

June ’10 – 22.71%

Page 53 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Student Survey Results 
 
Review the end of year Student Survey Results 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and discuss the Four Corners Charter School, Inc. Governing Board  
Student Survey Results   
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Denise Thompson
 

Page 54 of 97



Student Survey Results
End of Year June 2010

Presented to 

The Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

presented  July, 2010

Page 55 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

Survey Summary

• Second Annual Student Satisfaction Survey.

• The first year was evaluated on a 4 point Likert Scale.  
This year we used a 6 point Likert Scale.

• In addition, the entire survey was modified for quality 
purposes, therefore it is difficult to make comparisons for 
both this year and last.

• Graphs will provide a pictorial view of the survey results.

• Results from individual “Buckets” presented to the Board 
from your Student Survey June 2010, are evaluated to 
show successes and opportunities.  

• Results will be integrated into the School’s strategic plan 
and improvement plan for the school year 2010-2011

Page 56 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

Four Corners Charter School
Participation

Students in grades 5th and 7th were  
given the opportunity to complete the 
student survey.

Survey was provided to student’s during 
class time.  

Survey was offered in both english and 
spanish.  

Page 57 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

Average Results of “Buckets”
6 point Likert scale

“Buckets” June ‘10

Curriculum 5.01

Challenging Goals & Effective Feedback 5.00

Faculty and Staff 4.83

Students in this School….. 4.68

My Teachers……. 5.27

Safe & Orderly Environment 4.58

School Activities 4.44

SIS 5.20

Optimism 5.56

General 4.78

Average for all 4.94

(Last Year Average on 4 pt Scale 2.94)
Page 58 of 97



Students

Integrity

Fiscal Responsibility

Learning 

People 

Teamwork

Commitment

Accountability

High Standards

School Results by Categories

FCCS Categories Compared with CSUSA Totals

5.01

5.00

4.83

4.68

5.27

4.58

4.44

5.20

5.56

4.78

4.94

4.83

4.80

4.48

4.22

4.90

4.47

4.41

5.30

5.51

4.21

4.71

0 1 2 3 4 5 6

Curriculum

Challenging Goals & Effective Feedback

Faculty and Staff

Students in this School

My Teachers

Safe and Orderly Environment

School Activities

SIS

Optimism

General

School Totals

Ca
te

go
ri

es

6 pt Likert Scale

CSUSA
FCCS

Page 59 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Staff Survey Results 
 
Review the end of year Staff Survey Results 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and discuss the Four Corners Charter School, Inc. Governing Board  
Staff Survey Results   
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Denise Thompson
 

Page 60 of 97



www.charterschoolsusa.com

Staff Survey Results
End of Year 2009-2010

Presented to 

Four Corners 

July, 2010

Page 61 of 97



Charter Schools USA ● 6245 N. Federal Hwy., 5th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308  ● Phone: 954-202-3500

Four Corners Staff Survey
Total Staff population of 73 were given the 
opportunity to complete the Staff Survey.

Survey was distributed by email to Employees 

70 surveys completed 96%.

Survey sent out April 2010
End of Yr 09 Mid- Year 09 End of Yr 10

35 66           70

Page 62 of 97



Charter Schools USA ● 6245 N. Federal Hwy., 5th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308  ● Phone: 954-202-3500

Categories or “Buckets”

• Category 1 -Workforce Strength  (Gallup questions.. attract, 
retain, and focus on TOP TALENT)

• Category 2 -Leadership (21 Responsibilities of a Leader that 

correlate to student achievement)

• Category 3- Work Environment

Page 63 of 97



Charter Schools USA ● 6245 N. Federal Hwy., 5th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308  ● Phone: 954-202-3500

Average Results of “Buckets” for FCCS

6 point likert scale
End of Yr 09      Mid-Yr 09      End of Yr 10

• Workforce Strength 5.17                4.95 4.95

• Leadership 5.22                4.96 4.83

• I would recommend working      5.67                5.21 5.07

at this school to a friend

% Yes

• Communicating events 73.3%            79.7% 77.6%

• Safe Working Environment           100%            96.6% 96.6%

• Clean and well maintained 96.7%            91.5% 91.4%

• SIS is a useful tool 90%              91.5% 84.5%

Page 64 of 97



Charter Schools USA ● 6245 N. Federal Hwy., 5th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308  ● Phone: 954-202-3500

Results Compared with All CSUSA Schools

Averages of Four Corners Compared w ith CSUSA Schools

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Workforce Strength Leadership

FCCS

CSUSA

Page 65 of 97



Charter Schools USA ● 6245 N. Federal Hwy., 5th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308  ● Phone: 954-202-3500

Work Environment
Averages of FCCS Compared w ith CSUSA Schools

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Communicating events Safe Working
Environment

Clean and w ell
maintained

SIS is a useful tool

FCCS
CSUSA

Page 66 of 97



Charter Schools USA ● 6245 N. Federal Hwy., 5th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308  ● Phone: 954-202-3500

Four Corners Workforce Strength
• What we do well

I know what is expected of me at work  

At work, I have the opportunity to do what I do best everyday

The mission/purpose of CSUSA makes me feel my job is important  

• Opportunities

I have the materials and equipment I need to do my work right

I have a best friend at work

At work, my opinion seems to count

Page 67 of 97



Charter Schools USA ● 6245 N. Federal Hwy., 5th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308  ● Phone: 954-202-3500

Four Corners Leadership
•What we do well
Establishes clear student achievement goals 

Stresses the use of data to develop instructional strategies   

Recognizes & celebrates student achievement & accomplishments  

•Opportunities
Asks for feedback on how their actions impact performance 

Involves staff in design & implementation of important decisions

Works to ensure all staff have the necessary resources to do their job 

Page 68 of 97



Charter Schools USA ● 6245 N. Federal Hwy., 5th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308  ● Phone: 954-202-3500

Data usage

• Results used in School Strategic Planning sessions 
for goal setting and improvements

• Benchmarking data to monitor progress

• Identifying Leadership Professional Development 
opportunities

• HR People First and Operational initiatives

Page 69 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Facility – Follow up to Open Items 
 
Review safety inspection concerns, roofing, A/C unit and athletic fields.  Report 
on updates on processes and bids for these projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and Discuss. 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  Dan Coppola/Paul Hage
 

Page 70 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Management Renewal 
 
Initial discussions on Management Renewal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and Discuss. 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  John McKay
 

Page 71 of 97



Page 72 of 97



Page 73 of 97



Page 74 of 97



Page 75 of 97



Page 76 of 97



Page 77 of 97



Page 78 of 97



Page 79 of 97



Page 80 of 97



Page 81 of 97



Page 82 of 97



Page 83 of 97



Page 84 of 97



Page 85 of 97



Page 86 of 97



Page 87 of 97



Page 88 of 97



Page 89 of 97



Page 90 of 97



Page 91 of 97



Page 92 of 97



Page 93 of 97



Page 94 of 97



Page 95 of 97



Page 96 of 97



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

SCHOOL BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

Thursday, July 15, 2010 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Board Member Appointments – Lake County 
 
Initial discussions on Board Member Appointments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Review and Discuss. 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by:  John McKay
 

Page 97 of 97


	ADPC5.tmp
	MEETING MINUTES
	Name of Foundation: Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
	Board Meeting:  May 20, 2010
	Start
	End



	FCCS Minutes 05.20.10.pdf
	MEETING MINUTES
	Name of Foundation: Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
	Board Meeting:  May 20, 2010
	Start
	End



	FCCS 2009-2010 3rd Grade Raw Data Graphs_RD and MA.pdf
	Four Corners Charter School�2009-2010 FCAT Raw �Reading & Mathematics Results�
	2009-2010 FCAT Reading Raw: �3rd Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Reading Raw: �3rd Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Reading Raw: �3rd Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Mathematics Raw: 3rd Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Mathematics Raw: �3rd Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Mathematics Raw: �3rd Grade Comparison (Level 1)

	FCCS Minutes 05.20.10.pdf
	MEETING MINUTES
	Name of Foundation: Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
	Board Meeting:  May 20, 2010
	Start
	End



	FCCS Parent Survey Results June 2010.pdf
	Parent Survey Results�End of Year 2010
	Survey Summary
	Average Results of “Buckets”�4 point Likert scale
	School Results by Categories�
	Strengths
	Opportunities
	Satisfaction Results
	Four Corners Charter School� Participation

	FCCS Student Survey Results End of Year June 2010.pdf
	Student Survey Results�End of Year June 2010
	Survey Summary
	Four Corners Charter School� Participation
	Average Results of “Buckets”�6 point Likert scale
	School Results by Categories�

	EYO_FCCS_2010.pdf
	Staff Survey Results�End of Year 2009-2010
	Four Corners Staff Survey
	Categories or “Buckets”
	Average Results of “Buckets” for FCCS				   6 point likert scale�		      	   End of Yr 09      Mid-Yr 09      End of Yr 10
	Results Compared with All CSUSA Schools
	Work Environment
	Four Corners Workforce Strength
	Four Corners Leadership
	Data usage

	FCCS 2009-2010 Raw Data Graphs_RD MA WR SC fINAL.pdf
	Four Corners Charter School�2009-2010 FCAT Raw Results �Reading-Mathematics-Writing-Science �
	2009-2010 FCAT Reading Raw: �3rd Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Reading Raw: �3rd Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Reading Raw: �3rd Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Mathematics Raw: 3rd Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Mathematics Raw: �3rd Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Mathematics Raw: �3rd Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �4th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �4th Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �4th Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �4th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �4th Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �4th Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Writing:� 4th Grade Proficient Comparison
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 5th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �5th Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �5th Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �5th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �5th Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �5th Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Science:� 5th Grade Proficient Comparison
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 6th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �6th Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �6th Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �6th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �6th Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �6th Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 7th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �7th  Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �7th  Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics:� 7th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �7th  Grade Comparison (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �7th  Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 8th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: 8th Comparison Grade (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Reading: �8th  Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 8th Grade Proficient
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: 8th Comparison Grade (Proficient)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Mathematics: �8th  Grade Comparison (Level 1)
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Writing:� 8th Grade Proficient Comparison
	2009-2010 FCAT Raw Science:� 8th Grade Proficient Comparison




